
City of Sutherlin 

Planning Commission Meeting 

Tuesday, May 17, 2016 

7:00 p.m. – Sutherlin Civic Auditorium 

 

 

Agenda 

Pledge of Allegiance 

 

Introduction of Media 

 

Approval of Minutes 

 February 16, 2016 - Regular Meeting 

 

Public Hearings 

 

 16-S002 Stowe, Maggie – Plan Amendment and Zone Change 

 16-S003 Hummelt Development – Plan Amendment and Zone Change 

 

Monthly Activity Report(s) 

 

Public Comment 

 

Commission Comments 

 

Adjournment 

 
 

 



 

Planning Commission Meeting of February 16, 2016 Page 1 

 

CITY OF SUTHERLIN 
PLANNING COMMISSION MEETING  

CIVIC AUDITORIUM – 7PM 
TUESDAY, FEBRUARY 16, 2016 

 
COMMISSION MEMBERS PRESENT:  William Lee, John Lusby, Michelle Sumner and Floyd Van 
Sickle 
COMMISSION MEMBERS EXCUSED:  Patricia Klassen 
COMMISSION MEMBERS ABSENT:  Mike Flick and Adam Sarnoski 
CITY STAFF:   Jerry Gillham, City Manager, Kristi Gilbert, Community Development Specialist and 
Lisa Hawley, City Planner, Aaron Swan, Public Works Superintendent and Brian Elliott, Public Utilities 
Superintendent  
AUDIENCE: Michael Sullivan, Michael Fanger, Adam Heberly, Denny Cameron, Tami Trowbridge 
and Mrs. Lee 
 
Meeting called to order at 7:00 pm by Chair Lusby. 
 
FLAG SALUTE 
 
INTRODUCTION OF NEW PLANNING COMMISSION MEMBER:  Chair Lusby welcomed William 
Lee to the Planning Commission. 
 
INTRODUCTION OF MEDIA:  None 
 
APPROVAL OF MINUTES 
 
A motion made by Commissioner Van Sickle to approve the minutes of the January 19, 2016 
Planning Commission meeting and Workshop; second made by Commissioner Sumner.  
In favor:  Commissioners Van Sickle, Sumner and Chair Lusby 
Opposed:  None 
Abstained: Commissioner Lee abstained since he was not appointed to the Planning Commission at 
the time of the meeting. 
Motion carried unanimously  
 
FUTURE PROJECTS 
 
Jerry Gillham, City Manager, briefed the Commission on the eight council priorities; which included, 
North Comstock, Mixed-Use Industrial, Toddler Playground, UGB Exchange/Expansion, Valentine 
Street, Central Avenue TOA/TE Grant, Street and Facility Maintenance Reserve Funds and 
Continued Economic Development.  Within the continued economic development, Mr. Gillham 
introduced two developers the City has been working with.  Mike Sullivan is a partner with Oregon 
Only and Michael Fanger is with Disc Golf Nation.   
 
Mike Sullivan, Oregon Only, stated that he was working with Bruce Brunette, Lion’s Head 
Development.  Mr. Sullivan provided a little background noting that after numerous discussions they 
came up with a timber based theme and Historical Interpretive Center concept, featuring “Oregon 
Only” business and products.  They will add a theme park to the business along with a 200 to 250 
room motel convention center, in which various timber industries have expressed interest.  Oregon 
Only would like to work with the City and Friends of Ford’s Pond to host outdoor logging shows and 
activities at Ford’s Pond.   



 

Planning Commission Meeting of February 16, 2016 Page 2 

 

 
Michael Fanger, Disc Golf Nation (DGN), started his company about four years ago.  He explained 
the details regarding the sport and reasons for bringing it to this area.  Mr. Fanger then indicated that 
they are involved in international disc golf tours.  These tours draw in roughly 10,000 people in four 
days.  He indicated that the investment process is approximately a five year build out and then they 
select the next site to build.  The resort would consist of golf, disc golf, hair, nails and tanning as well 
as many other resort things for families to do during their stay.  Mr. Fanger explained that once a year 
the golf course would be closed and they would lay out disc golf courses over the top of the golf 
course allowing them to host a championship event with approximately five courses. 
 
2016-17 ROADWAY IMPROVEMENTS 
 
Aaron Swan, Public Works Superintendent, introduced Adam Heberly with Heberly Engineering.  He 
then briefed the Commission on the potential streets to be slurry sealed.  Continuing from the area 
completed last year, moving east to west, Swan and Heberly recommended seven streets to include 
E. Second Ct, E. Third Ct, Casa De Loma (lower), N. Grove Ln (cul-de-sac), Arvilla Way (upper), 
Fourth Ave (Opal to Arvilla Way) and Montclair Drive. 
 
A motion made by Commissioner Sumner, to recommend to City Council, the approval of street 
selection as suggested by Public Works and Heberly Engineering, seven streets for 2016-2017 FY 
Slurry Seal to include; E. Second Ct, E. Third Ct, Casa De Loma (lower), N. Grove Ln (culdesac), 
Arvilla Way (upper), Fourth Ave (Opal to Arvilla Way) and Montclair Drive for Slurry Seal to the City 
Council; second made by Chair Lusby.  
In favor:  Commissioners Lee, Van Sickle, Sumner and Chair Lusby 
Opposed:  None 
Abstained: None 
Motion carried unanimously  
 
Swan then briefed the Commission on potential streets for Pavement Overlay.  He discussed the 
condition of Umpqua St. from Central Ave. to Sixth Ave. and south of Central Ave. to Everett St. as an 
option.  He noted that the Central Ave. is also breaking down, so other options would include sections 
of Central Ave., noting that the section of Central Ave. would consist of approximately 1,000 feet as 
opposed to holding off and trying to redo Central Ave. in its entirety.    
 
The Commission asked about the intersection at Central Ave. and Calapooia St.  Swan indicated that 
he would be approaching the County to work together to improve that portion of Central Ave.   
 
Van Sickle inquired about when the portion of Calapooia St. between Central Ave. and Everett St. 
would be redone.  He also indicated, at the time it is redone, we should press upon the County to 
build to uphold log truck traffic. 
 
Discussion ensued regarding the options and getting the most for their money.  It was stated that 
Umpqua is highly travelled and used regularly by the school buses. 
 
Swan and Heberly indicated that if there are extra funds after the completion of Umpqua St., he would 
recommend overlaying a short strip on N. Terrace, north of Fourth Ave. (approximately 60-70 feet).  
Heberly then noted there was a small portion of Sherman located on the west side town, on the 
northern end that could be an option. 
 



 

Planning Commission Meeting of February 16, 2016 Page 3 

 

A motion made by Commissioner Lee to recommend to City Council the approval of Pavement 
Overlay for 2016-2017 FY as suggested by Public Works and Heberly Engineering, to include 
Umpqua Street and if budget allows for additional sections of N. Terrace and/or Sherman St.; second 
made by Commissioner Sumner.  
In favor:  Commissioners Lee, Van Sickle, Sumner and Chair Lusby 
Opposed:  None 
Abstained: None 
Motion carried unanimously  
 
Commissioner Van Sickle made a suggestion for the 2017-2018 Fiscal Year to overlay Terrace Street 
and Mardonna Street as they are in very poor condition and highly traveled by delivery trucks. 
 
Discussion ensued regarding the Council Priorities and the prioritization of them.  Commissioner 
Sumner asked why the toddler playground was a higher priority than Valentine St.  Swan indicated 
that they were different pots of money.  They are all a priority, in no particular order.  Commissioner 
Sumner then inquired when Valentine would be done.  Swan indicated that it potentially would be on 
the schedule for 2018.  
 
Van Sickle then asked questions regarding the Transfer of Authority of Central.  He understood that 
ODOT was allegedly increasing the amount of money for the TOA and was taking N. Comstock out of 
the equation.  Swan clarified that the City was getting a million dollars for N. Comstock.  It’s not part 
of the TOA equation.  Swan stated that the City applied for a Traffic Enhancement (TE) Grant that 
would not provide pavement, but would help with sidewalks and curb.  A portion of the TOA money 
would have been used as a match.  The grant does not look too promising so ODOT has sweetened 
the transfer by $250.000. 
 
Commissioner Van Sickle then inquired to the status of the project of running Calapooia through to 
State Street.  Swan indicated that it would be a great project; however, the County would have to 
have that on their list of priorities.   
 
PUBLIC COMMENT –  Mrs. Lee stated that there are pot holes near the Dollar Tree, the street going 
back into Dawn Ray Mobile Park.  Swan indicated that it was private property and not a city street. 
 
Commissioner Van Sickle then stated there was a pot hole within a pothole on Valentine.  
Commissioner Sumner stated it was filled today. 
 
COMMISSION COMMENTS – None 
    
ADJOURNMENT -  With no further business the meeting was adjourned at 8:28 pm. 
 
Respectfully submitted, 
 
____________________________                      
Kristi Gilbert 

                          
             APPROVED BY COMMISSION ON THE __      _____ DAY OF ___             ________, 2016. 
         
               
         ___________________________ 
         John Lusby, Commission Chair 



 

MARGARET STOWE 1 MAY 10, 2016 

             

               City of Sutherlin 
 

 
         May 10, 2016 

 

 

STAFF REPORT 

 

TO:  Sutherlin Planning Commission 

 

FROM: Lisa Hawley, Community Services Planner 

 

RE:   MARGARET STOWE, ET AL, request for a Comprehensive Plan Map Amendment 

from Heavy Industrial to Light Industrial and Zone Map Change from (M-2) Heavy 

Industrial to (M-1) Light Industrial on a 19.59 acre property located at the intersection of 

Fort McKay Road (County Road No. 9) and State Highway 138 (W. Central Avenue), west 

of Exit 136 and inside the City of Sutherlin.  The subject property is described as Tax Lot 

400 in Section 19B, T25S, R5W, W.M., and Tax Lots 100, 200 & 300 in Section 24A, 

T25S, R6W, W.M.; Property I.D. Nos. R46440, R46447, R46496 & R46468.  A portion of 

the subject property contains identified wetlands. PLANNING DEPARTMENT FILE 

NO. 16-S002. 
 

INTRODUCTION 
 

The applicant, Margaret Stowe, et al, is requesting a Comprehensive Plan Map Amendment from Heavy 

Industrial to Light Industrial and Zone Map Change from (M-2) Heavy Industrial to (M-1) Light 

Industrial on a 19.59 acre property.   

 

The subject property is comprised of two parcels, which are located at the intersection of Fort McKay 

Road (County Road No. 9) and State Highway 138 (W. Central Avenue), west of Exit 136 and inside the 

city limits.  The subject property is described as Tax Lot 400 in Section 19B, T25S, R5W, W.M., and Tax 

Lots 100, 200 & 300 in Section 24A, T25S, R6W, W.M.; Property I.D. Nos. R46440, R46447, R46496 & 

R46468.  A portion of the subject property contains identified wetlands.  There are no structures located 

on the property.   

 

The subject property is designated Heavy Industrial by the Sutherlin Comprehensive Plan and is zoned 

(M-2) Heavy Industrial by the Sutherlin Development Code.  It is located in an area of mixed residential, 

commercial and industrial properties.  To the west-southwest, there is an existing RV park zoned C-3 

(General Commercial), and to the northwest adjacent to State Hwy 138, there is a small area of M-2 

zoning (currently vacant) and County M-3 (currently with forestry and fire suppression business), as well 

as a large existing single family residential area located further west, which is zoned (R-1) Low Density 

Residential and bounded by Church Street and State Hwy 138 to the north and Fort McKay Road to the 

Community Development 

126 E. Central Avenue 

Sutherlin, OR   97479 

(541) 459-2856 

Fax (541) 459-9363 
www.ci.sutherlin.or.us 



 

MARGARET STOWE 2 MAY 10, 2016 

south.  There is an existing golf course to the north (Umpqua Golf Resort) with an additional large single 

family residential development (zoned R-1 and RH, Residential Hillside), as well as an area of 

commercial development to the east and southeast (zoned C-3, General Commercial).  There is an area of 

County (RS) Suburban Residential zoning to the southeast of the subject property across W. Central Ave. 

within the UGB.  The UGB boundary lies immediately to the south across Fort McKay Road, with a large 

area of (RR) Committed Rural Residential zoned properties under the County’s jurisdiction.   

  

During the public hearing on May 17, 2016, the Planning Commission will accept public testimony and 

make a decision on the application after the public hearing. As part of the hearing, the Planning 

Commission will review the applicant’s request for compliance with the Statewide Planning Goals and 

the general goals and policies of the Sutherlin Comprehensive Plan and the applicable criteria of the 

Sutherlin Development Code and adopt Findings of Fact. 

 

After the public hearing, the Planning Commission must make a written recommendation and forward it 

to the City Council in the form of a Findings of Fact and Decision document, which justifies its decision 

and recommendation. The Council will consider the Commission's recommendation, hold a public 

hearing, and make a decision to grant, amend or deny the request. 

 

PROCEDURAL FINDINGS OF FACT 

 

1. The Comprehensive Plan Map Amendment and Zone Map Change applications were filed with 

the City on March 18, 2016, and were deemed complete on March 22, 2016.   

 

2. DLCD Notice of Proposed Amendment was mailed to the Department of Land Conservation and 

Development on April 11, 2016, which was at least 35 days prior to the first evidentiary public 

hearing on May 17, 2016.   

 

3. Pursuant to Sections 4.2.150.D.4 and 4.2.140.C, notice of the public hearing was given by 

publication in the News Review on May 3, 2016, which was at least fourteen (14) days prior to the 

date of the public hearing.  

 

4. Notice of a Public Hearing on an application for the Comprehensive Plan Map Amendment and 

Zone Map Change before the Planning Commission was given in accordance with Section 

Sections 4.2.150.D.4 and 4.2.140.C.  Notice was sent to affected property owners of record within 

100 feet of the subject property, service providers, and governmental agencies on April 26, 2016.   

 

a. John McDonald, Development Review Planner, ODOT Southwestern Region, in a letter 

dated September 15, 2015, provided comments on the applicant’s proposal.  When asked if 

a Traffic Impact Study (TIS) will be required for the zone change for both properties, he 

commented that ODOT will not require a TIS.  ODOT’s analysis had indicated that the 

zone change will not have a significant effect on transportation facilities.  

 

Mr. McDonald also noted that the properties do not have access directly to Highway 138.  

Both properties have access to Fort McKay Road.  He stated if the property owners desire 

direct access to Highway 138, they must go through the grant process, which is generally 

difficult and time-consuming.  If the property owners desire direct access, they will need to 

contact ODOT to start that process 

 

b. Aaron Swan, Public Works Superintendent and Brian Elliott, Public Utilities 

Superintendent, commented on the request as follows: 



 

MARGARET STOWE 3 MAY 10, 2016 

The City of Sutherlin Public Works Operations and Public Works Utilities have reviewed 

the proposed Plan Amendment and Zone Change request to change the subject properties 

from M-2 (Heavy Industrial) to an M-1 Zone (Light Industrial) submitted by Maggie 

Stowe.  We defer specific requirements regarding water/sewer main connections until 

more detailed infrastructure plans for a proposed industrial development are available. 

 

For the application purposes, the subject properties can be served by City Water and 

Sewer. 

 

The City currently has an excess of three plus million gallons of potable water available.  

City water services are available as follows:   

• Northside of HWY 138 there is an 18” water main that parallels HWY (available);  

• Northeast corner of neighboring property there is a 6” water main on Southside of 

HWY 138 (preferred);  

• Southeast corner of the lot immediately west of the western most subject property, 

there is a 6” water main (available); or,  

• Intersection of HWY 138 and Fort McKay there is a 12” stub across HWY 138 South to 

Fort McKay Road (preferred).  

 

The City is in the current process of major improvements to the WWTF (Waste Water 

Treatment Facility).  City sewer services are available as follows: 

• Sewer is located on the Northside of HWY 138 there is a 21” sanitary sewer parallels 

HWY (available);  

• Northeast corner of neighboring property there is an 8” sanitary sewer on Southside of 

HWY 138 (preferred);  

 

There is one Fire Hydrant located in the northeast corner of the west neighboring property 

on south side of HWY 138 and there is one Fire Hydrant on the south side of Fort McKay 

Road across from lot immediately west of the western most subject property. 

 

There are open ditches along Fort McKay and State Hwy 138W.  Drainage drains into 

Cook Creek from the subject properties.  Upon development of the subject properties a 

detailed drainage plan shall be required. 

 

c. Written comments were submitted by two adjoining property owners, Michael Sulffridge  

and RosaLee Sulffridge, who own a forestry and fire suppression business on the west side 

of the subject properties, which is currently zoned County M-3 (Heavy Industrial) and 

located in the UGB but outside the city limits.  Copies of both of their comments are 

attached to this report. 

 

i. The Sulffridges’ are primarily concerned the proposed zone change will have a 

negative impact on their property’s future use and property values.  They stated 

they would strongly oppose any zone change that would reflect on their property 

and the use of their property.  Another concern relates to increased water and 

drainage impacts.  They stated that additional water runoff has occurred as 

adjoining properties have been developed over the years and the resulting increases 

in drainage and flooding have negatively affected their property.  They were 

concerned that the City would not enforce development codes to prevent drainage 

from further encroaching upon their property.  

 



 

MARGARET STOWE 4 MAY 10, 2016 

ii. Staff notes the rezoning of the property itself will not have an impact on the 

drainage affecting the Sulffridges’ properties.  However, future development of the 

subject property, particularly the western portion owned by Leatherwood/Paynter, 

could have an impact on their property.  Drainage and water runoff are required to 

be addressed by the City as part of any site plan review for development of the 

subject property.   

 

d. At the time of the mailing of this staff report, no other written comments or remonstrances 

have been received. 

 

5. Present Situation: The subject property is currently vacant and undeveloped.  

 

6. Plan Designation: Heavy Industrial.  The applicant is requesting a plan map amendment to the 

Light Industrial plan designation. 

 

7. Zone Designation: Heavy (General) Industrial (M-2).  The applicant is requesting a zone map 

amendment to the Light Industrial (M-1) zoning designation. 

 

8. Public Water: The subject property has access to public water from the City of Sutherlin along 

State Hwy 138; no new service connections are proposed with this request.  Public water is not 

currently available to the area along Fort McKay Road, and will have to be extended to 

accommodate future development of the site.   

 

9. Sanitary Sewer: The subject property has access to sanitary sewer from the City of Sutherlin along 

State Hwy 138; no new service connections are proposed with this request.  Sanitary sewer is not 

currently available to the area along Fort McKay Road, and will have to be extended to 

accommodate future development of the site.   

 

10. Transportation System:  State Hwy 138 (W. Central Avenue) is designated a Minor Arterial under 

the City’s Transportation System Plan, and is under ODOT’s jurisdiction.  Fort McKay Road 

(County Road 9) is designated a Major Collector Street under the City’s TSP, and is under the 

County’s jurisdiction.   

 

11. Transportation Connectivity: The subject 19.59 acre property is currently vacant and undeveloped.  

At this time, no direct access onto the State Highway will be permitted, unless access is granted by 

ODOT.  Connectivity will be provided to Fort McKay Road, as well as Plat M Road, as part of the 

future development of the property.   

 

12. Pedestrian & Bicycle Access: State Hwy 138 and Fort McKay Road are both designated bicycle 

and pedestrian ways under the Transportation System Plan.   

 

13. Overlay:  The subject property is not located within the 100 year flood plain. 

 

Finding:  The procedural findings noted above are adequate to support the Planning Commission’s 

recommendation on the requested Comprehensive Plan Map Amendment and Zone Map Change. 

 

  



 

MARGARET STOWE 5 MAY 10, 2016 

APPLICABLE CRITERIA & FINDINGS 

 

Pursuant to Section 4.11.110.C of the Sutherlin Development Code, the proposed amendment to the land 

use plan’s text or map must be (1) consistent to the applicable statewide planning goals as adopted by the 

Land Conservation and Development Commission (LCDC), and (2) consistent with the remainder of the 

comprehensive plan, including inventory documents and facility plans incorporated therein.   

 

Based upon the application materials and information submitted by the applicant and other evidence 

provided, staff presents the following findings to address the applicable criteria: 

 

CONSISTENCY WITH THE STATEWIDE PLANNING GOALS 

 

1. Goal 1- Citizen Involvement:  To provide for widespread citizen involvement in the planning 

process, and to allow citizens the opportunity to review and comment on proposed changes to 

comprehensive land use plans prior to any formal public hearing to consider the proposed changes. 

 

Finding:  Statewide Planning Goal 1 requires cities and counties to create and use a citizen involvement 

process designed to include affected area residents in planning activities and decision-making.  Since 

acknowledgement of the City’s Comprehensive Plan, the Sutherlin Planning Commission has been 

responsible for ensuring continued citizen involvement in planning matters and land use decisions.  The 

City of Sutherlin notifies nearby property owners, publishes a public hearing notice and contact 

information in the newspaper, and facilitates public participation during the public hearing itself. 

 

2. Goal 2- Land Use Planning:  To establish a land use planning process and policy framework as a 

basis for all decisions and actions related to land use and to ensure a factual base for such 

decisions and actions. 

 

Finding:  Sutherlin's acknowledged Comprehensive Plan and implementing ordinances provide a State-

approved process for land use decision making, and a policy framework derived from a proper factual 

base.  The City's Comprehensive Plan and implementing ordinances provide the local criteria by which 

the applicant’s request will be reviewed.  The subject property is within the Sutherlin Urban Growth 

Boundary, no exception to statewide planning goals is necessary. 

 

3. Goal 3- Agricultural Lands: To preserve and maintain agricultural lands. 

 

Finding:  The two subject parcels are located within the Sutherlin UGB and are currently designated for 

heavy industrial use.  No agricultural lands are affected by this proposal. 

 

4. Goal 4- Forest Lands: To conserve forest lands for forest uses. 

 

Finding:  The two subject parcels are located within the UGB and are currently designated for heavy 

industrial use.  No designated commercial or productive timber lands are affected by this proposal. 

 

5. Goal 5- Open Spaces, Scenic and Historic Area, and Natural Resources: To conserve open space 

and protect natural and scenic resources. 

 

Finding:  This proposal will have no significant impact on any of the items of issue in Goal 5. The 

subject properties are not in an area designated for any of the above goals, and are currently designated 

for heavy industrial uses.   

 



 

MARGARET STOWE 6 MAY 10, 2016 

Finding:  Neither of the subject properties is designated in the Comprehensive Plan as an identified or 

protected open space or scenic and historic area.  The combined acreage has approximately 6± acres of 

identified existing wetlands.  The submitted wetland delineation map for the Fenton/Cortes property 

shows 5.26± acres of wetlands, and City's map shows Leatherwood/Paynter property has 0.62± acres of 

wetlands.  These wetlands are located primarily along the eastern and middle portions of the properties.  

These wetlands will need to be addressed and/or mitigated as part of the future development of the 

property. 

 

6. Goal 6- Air, Water and Land Resource Quality: To maintain and improve the quality of air, water 

and land resources of the state. 

 

Finding:  The subject properties will not affect the quality of air, water and land resources of the area. 

This request will actually down zone the properties from heavy industrial to light industrial, and many of 

the heavy industrial uses that were previously permitted, which could have most negatively affected air, 

water and land quality in the area, will no longer be permitted.  The properties are currently undeveloped 

with no areas of steep slopes. It has available water and sanitary service from the City of Sutherlin.   

 

7. Goal 7- Areas Subject to Natural Disasters and Hazards: To protect life and property from natural 

disasters and hazards. 

 

Finding:  Both properties are currently undeveloped and they're not in an area of any known natural 

hazards. They are not located in a flood hazard zone or in an area of steep slopes. There will be no impact 

to natural hazards if the plan designation and rezoning are granted. 

 

8. Goal 8- Recreational Needs: To satisfy the recreational needs of the citizens of the State and 

visitors and, where appropriate, to provide for the siting of necessary recreation facilities including 

destination resorts. 

 

Finding:  There are no master plans, identified parks, or recreational areas specifically planned for the 

two subject properties (the 19.59 acres). However, there are maps and information in the City's Park and 

Open Space Plan for a planned neighborhood park directly adjacent to the northwest side of the property, 

which is south of Highway 138 and north of the existing RV park located immediately to the west.  This 

site is identified in the parks plan as the Southwest Park Planning area.  It is not anticipated that the 

rezoning of the subject property from heavy to light industrial will negatively impact this planned future 

park site.  In addition, there are currently other parks and recreational facilities within the City of 

Sutherlin that will meet the recreational needs of the City.  There is the Sutherlin Central Park, Hartley 

Park, and the newly developed Wayne Calder Wetland Conservation Area that borders Calapooia Creek, 

as well as the future development of the Ford's Pond recreational site located due west of the subject 

properties off Church Road.  

 

9. Goal 9- Economic Development: To provide adequate opportunities throughout the State for a 

variety of economic activities vital to the health, welfare, and prosperity of Oregon’s citizens. 

 

There are no commercially designated lands involved in the proposed plan amendment. As identified in 

the City’s 1991 Comprehensive Plan, the City has approximately 630± acres of lands designated for future 

industrial development.  Of this total, 440± acres are designated for heavy industrial and 190± acres is 

designated for light industrial.  The vast majority of these heavy industrial lands are currently located 

south of the central business district between Calapooia Street and Comstock/Taylor Streets in the south-

central portion of the urban growth boundary, while another 200± acre portion is located north-east of the 

subject property off Stearns Lane.  



 

MARGARET STOWE 7 MAY 10, 2016 

Finding:  The proposed amendment involves amending the comprehensive plan from a heavy industrial 

use to a more diverse and mixed light industrial use, which will allow a variety of limited commercial 

uses. The proposed amendment will remove 19.59 acres from heavy industrial, leaving approximately 

420± acres in heavy industrial, which will have minimal impact on the amount of lands zone for heavy 

industrial use within the City and urban growth boundary.    

 

10. Goal 10- Housing: To provide for the housing needs of citizens of the State. 

 

Finding:  Since the initial adoption of the City’s Comprehensive Plan in the early 1980s and the adoption 

of the current Comprehensive Plan in 1991, both of the subject properties have been planned and zoned 

for heavy industrial uses. Neither were ever planned or proposed for residential development.  The 

rezoning proposed by Applicant will not result in a reduction or increase in residential housing in the city 

nor change or affect the housing needs of the existing residential areas in the UGB. 

 

11. Goal 11- Public Facilities and Services: To plan and develop a timely, orderly and efficient 

arrangement of public facilities and services to serve as a framework for urban and rural development. 

 

Finding:  The subject properties are located within the UGB and already have public water and sanitary 

sewer services available from the City of Sutherlin.  Existing fire and police protection are also provided 

by the City. 

 

12. Goal 12- Transportation: To provide and encourage a safe, convenient and economic transportation 

system. 

 

Finding:  Both subject properties have existing frontage onto West Central Avenue (State Highway 138) 

and Fort McKay Road (County Road 9).  Per discussion with ODOT, Region 3, access will be limited to 

only Fort McKay Road, and that an existing old farm access approach onto State Highway 138 will need 

to be closed as part of any future development.  The subject property is comprised of four existing lots of 

record (part of Lots 3, 4 & 5, Sutherlin Land & Water Company, Plat M; and parcel 1, MLP 3/109, filed 

survey M 67-37).  The application states that no further division of the properties is proposed at this time.    

 

Finding:  John McDonald, Development Review Planner, ODOT Southwestern Region 3, stated in his 

correspondence dated 9-15-2015, access to both properties is not feasible from Highway 138.  A traffic 

impact study (TIS) was not going to be required by ODOT for this proposal.  ODOT's analysis indicated 

that the zone change from M-2 to M-1 will not have a significant effect on transportation facilities.  Mike 

Luttrell, Engineer Division Manager, stated that Douglas County concurs with ODOT and agreed to 

continue to allow the applicant to access the subject properties from Fort McKay Road.  Future 

development of the subject properties will require coordination with ODOT and Douglas County to 

ensure compliance with the access and development standards. 

 

13. Goal 13- Energy Conservation: To conserve energy. 

 

Finding:  The subject properties are currently vacant and undeveloped.  With this request, the plan 

designation will change from heavy industrial to light industrial to accommodate mixed light industrial 

and commercial uses.  The proposed change will not impact energy conservation. 

 

14. Goal 14- Urbanization: To provide for an orderly and efficient transition from rural to urban land 

use. 

 



 

MARGARET STOWE 8 MAY 10, 2016 

Finding:  There will be no negative impact or change in the density as a result of the proposed 

amendment, and the proposed change will not adversely affect the existing land use pattern of the area. 

The subject 19.59 acres are located within the city limits and the Sutherlin Urban Growth Boundary 

(UGB) and is located in an area of mixed residential, commercial and industrial properties.  To the west-

southwest, there is an existing RV park zoned C-3 (General Commercial), and to the northwest adjacent to 

State Hwy 138, there is a small area of M-2 zoning (currently vacant) and County M-3 (currently with 

forestry and fire suppression business), as well as a large existing single family residential area located 

further west, which is zoned (R-1) Low Density Residential and bounded by Church Street and State Hwy 

138 to the north and Fort McKay Road to the south.  There is an existing golf course to the north 

(Umpqua Golf Resort) with an additional large single family residential development (zoned R-1 and RH, 

Residential Hillside), as well as an area of commercial development to the east and southeast (zoned C-3, 

General Commercial).  There is an area of County (RS) Suburban Residential zoning to the southeast of 

the subject property across W. Central Ave. within the UGB.  The UGB boundary lies immediately to the 

south across Fort McKay Road, with a large area of (RR) Committed Rural Residential zoned properties 

under the County’s jurisdiction.   

 

CONSISTENCY WITH SUTHERLIN COMPREHENSIVE PLAN POLICIES & FINDINGS 

 

1.  NATURAL & CULTURAL RESOURCES ELEMENT 

 

This subject 19.59 acre site is currently vacant and undeveloped.  The properties are located within the 

UGB and are not located in an identified flood zone. There are no identified geologic hazards or steep 

slopes on the property. The two properties are also not identified as historic sites.  They will also have no 

impact on preservation of any identified mineral and aggregate resources. However, there is a combined 

total of approximately 6± acres of designated wetlands, which will need to be addressed at the time of 

development.  The application states that the designated wetlands naturally drain into the Cook Creek 

located north of both properties and then into the Calapooia Creek 

 

With regard to conserving vegetation, wildlife and water resources, Policy 5 states that “residential, 

commercial and industrial development should be designed and located where it will not burden the 

area’s water resources or the community’s water delivery system.”   

 

Finding:  It is anticipated that these two industrial properties will not adversely burden the City’s water 

resources.  As stated previously, the City currently has an excess of three plus million gallons of potable 

water available.  City water services are available as follows:   

• Northside of HWY 138 there is an 18” water main that parallels HWY (available);  

• Northeast corner of neighboring property there is a 6” water main on Southside of HWY 138 

(preferred);  

• Southeast corner of the lot immediately west of the western most subject property, there is a 6” water 

main (available); or,  

• Intersection of HWY 138 and Fort McKay there is a 12” stub across HWY 138 South to Fort McKay 

Road (preferred). 

 

With regard to conserving open spaces and promoting the protection of historic sites, structures and 

objects, Policy 1 states that the “city shall promote the conservation of open spaces that serve as buffer 

areas separating residential areas from wholesale commercial, industrial, and other conflicting land uses 

through the establishment of development covenants and zone designations.”   

 



 

MARGARET STOWE 9 MAY 10, 2016 

Finding:  The proposed change from heavy industrial to light industrial will help to promote Policy 1 by 

providing an additional buffer area for the nearby residential properties and by no longer permitting the 

heavy industrial uses that would have most negatively impacted these nearby residential areas. 

 

2. POPULATION & ECONOMIC ELEMENT 

 

These subject properties are currently vacant and undeveloped.  As part of the City’s current 

comprehensive plan (1991) Economic Element, Land Use Element and Appendix I, the subject sites were 

designated as heavy industrial in the original industrial lands inventory. 

 

In the City’s current industrial lands inventory (from the City’s website, www.sutherlinlands.com), 19 

heavy industrial sites are promoted inside the City’s UGB.  Of the 19 sites on the inventory, the subject 

19.59 acres are not on the inventory nor are they identified as one of the primary sites for industrial 

development.  Furthermore, the City recently completed an economic opportunities analysis in December 

2014.  This EOA identified 21 industrial sites and focused on the five prime sites as part of its analysis.  

The subject 19.59 acres were not included in or made part of the recent EOA.   

 

Converting the properties from heavy industrial to light industrial will allow a mixed variety of light 

industrial and commercial uses on the subject properties.  The Comp Plan, page 30, describes the City’s 

industrial needs forecast, noting there was a total of 189 acres planned for Light Industrial land and 441 

acres planned for heavy industrial for the planning period.  The vast majority of the heavy industrial lands 

are located south of the central business district between Calapooia Street and Comstock/Taylor Streets, 

with another 200± acre portion is located north-east of the subject property off Stearns Lane.  With the 

proposed amendment, 19.59 acres will be removed from heavy industrial, leaving approximately 421 

acres, which will have minimal impact on the amount of lands available for heavy industrial use.   

 

Finding:   
 

With regard to the goal to broaden, improve, and diversify the economy while enhancing the environment. 

 

Policy 4 states “the city shall supply an adequate amount of land with suitable soil and drainage qualities 

in order to accommodate projected industrial and commercial needs.”   

 

Finding:  Surface water drains into Cook Creek then into the Calapooia Creek. There are approximately 

6± acres set aside for wetlands on the subject properties, both of which are located in the UGB and not 

located in a flood zone.  The wetlands will need to be addressed and/or mitigated as part of the future 

development of the property.  In addition, based upon the drainage concerns raised by the neighbors to the 

west (Sulffridges), drainage and surface water will have to be addressed as part of any future development 

and/or site plan review of the two subject properties as a means to minimize any adverse drainage 

impacts.    

 

Policy 7 states “the city shall identify and preserve sites for future industrial development.”  

 

Finding:  The City has 441 heavy industrial acres, which are located primarily south of the Central 

business district and along Stearns Lane. Converting the proposed 19.59 acres to light industrial will have 

minimal impact on the amount of heavy industrial lands available within the City and UGB.  Ample area 

will still be preserved and set aside of future industrial development. 

 

Policy 9 states “the city shall maintain its capacity of its water, drainage, sewerage, and transportation 

systems to ensure that a proper infrastructure attractive to industry is in place.”   

http://www.sutherlinlands.com/


 

MARGARET STOWE 10 MAY 10, 2016 

Finding:  There is existing water and sanitary sewer located along State Highway 138.  Upon future 

development of the property, public utilities will have to be extended along Fort McKay Road to service 

the property. Future access will be limited to Fort McKay Road to ensure traffic circulation and safe 

development of the site.  In addition, based upon the drainage concerns raised by the neighbors to the west 

(Sulffridges), drainage and surface water will have to be addressed as part of any future development 

and/or site plan review of the two subject properties as a means to minimize any adverse drainage 

impacts.   

 

3.  PUBLIC FACILITIES ELEMENT 
 

The public facilities required for the City to function properly include such systems as water, sewer, 

transportation, solid waste, emergency services, parks and recreation, as well as other public facilities. 

The purposed of the public facilities element is to systems are designed to provide for needed service 

expansion in an orderly manner. 

 

With regard to the public facilities goal to provide efficient public facilities and services in an orderly, 

planned manner so as to meet the needs of City’s residents and businesses, the following policies are 

applicable to the requested amendment: 

 

Policy 1 states “the city shall ensure that appropriate support systems are installed prior to or concurrent 

with the development of a particular area.  Costs of constructing water and sewer ties to new 

developments shall be borne by the developer.”  

 

Finding:  City water and sewer, and fire hydrants are located near to or along the property and are 

maintained by City of Sutherlin.    

 

Policy 2 states “all large construction projects shall be planned to meet ISO recommended fire flow 

requirements.”   

 

Finding:  ISO requirements will be reviewed for compliance when future construction plans are being 

considered. 

 

Policy 12 states “the city shall provide sewer and water service to areas within the Urban Growth 

Boundary.”  

 

Finding:  As noted previously, both subject parcels have city water and sewer available.  Existing water 

and sanitary sewer are located near to or along State Hwy 138 or Fort McKay Road.  Improvements, 

meeting City standards, will be required to extend these public services to the subject properties upon 

future development. 

 

Policy 13 states “the city shall require utilities to use the public right-of-way for future service ways and 

require utilities to coordinate activities in order to prevent unnecessary duplication.”   

 

Finding:  Upon future development, the city will require utilities to use the public rights-of-way and/or 

utility easements over the subject properties, as needed for future service.  Permits or submissions will be 

filed at the appropriate time when development is planned.  

 

Policy 14 states “ensure that as new development occurs, public facilities and services to support the 

development are available or will be available in a reasonable time.” Water/sewer, gas, and fire hydrants 

are already in place.  Electricity, internet/cable are available for future development. 



 

MARGARET STOWE 11 MAY 10, 2016 

Policy 15 states “all public facility improvements in the Sutherlin Urban Growth Boundary shall be 

consistent with this plan.”  

 

Finding:  Upon future development of either of the two subject properties, all public facility 

improvements required to service the property shall be consistent with the plan.   

 

4.  HOUSING ELEMENT 
 

Under the Housing Element’s goal “to locate future housing so that available land is both used efficiently 

and developed for a high degree of livability,” the following policies are applicable to the requested 

amendment: 

 

Policy 1 states to “encourage infilling of the existing residential areas by incentives for new construction 

in already-serviced areas.”  

 

Finding:  The requested plan amendment is from heavy industrial to light industrial and will continue to 

provide the same housing opportunity that is provided in both the M-2 and M-1 zones, which allows for a 

caretaker dwelling. No additional dwelling sites are planned or requested with this proposal.  The down 

zoning will allow more suitable businesses to be placed there that are more desirable to the surrounding 

residential properties and the existing commercial and industrial uses in the area. 

 

Policy 2 states to “provide buffer zones between residential areas and conflicting land uses (i.e., 

industrial, certain kinds of commercial, residential, etc.) in order to protect the overall livability of these 

areas.  

 

Finding:  Down zoning to light industrial, which allows a limited variety of commercial uses, will help 

provide buffer between the nearby residential areas and other conflicting land uses.  The new zoning will 

also make the property more desirable to the residential and commercial zones and uses in the area now 

and in the future. 

 

5.  LAND USE & URBANIZATION ELEMENT 
 

Converting the properties from heavy industrial to light industrial will allow a mixed variety of light 

industrial and commercial uses on the site. In describing the industrial land needs of the city, the 1991 

Comp Plan, pages 64-65, describes the inventory process and states that a total of 630 acres of land have 

been designated by the Comp Plan for future industrial development.  Of this total, 470 acres are located 

inside the city limits and 160 acres in the unincorporated portion of the UGB; of which 281 acres inside 

the city limits are designated for heavy industry and 189 acres are designated for light industry.  All of the 

industrially designated land outside of the city limits is planned for heavy industrial use. 

 

In Appendix I [Industrial Lands Inventory Maps] of the 1991 Comp Plan, the subject properties are 

identified on Map F as part of industrial lands site C-18, with associated Site Evaluation Sheet, and 

designated as vacant Heavy Industrial land.   

 

In the City’s current industrial lands inventory (from the City’s website, www.sutherlinlands.com), 19 

heavy industrial sites are promoted inside the City’s UGB.  Of the 19 sites on the inventory, the subject 

19.59 acres are not on the inventory nor are they identified as one of the primary sites for industrial 

development.  Furthermore, the City recently completed an economic opportunities analysis in December 

2014.  This EOA identified 21 industrial sites and focused on the five prime sites as part of its analysis.  

The subject 19.59 acres were not included in or made part of the recent EOA.  

http://www.sutherlinlands.com/


 

MARGARET STOWE 12 MAY 10, 2016 

Finding:  With the proposed amendment, 19.59 acres will be removed from heavy industrial, which will 

have minimal impact on the amount of lands available for heavy industrial use.  The vast majority of the 

heavy industrial lands are located south of the central business district between Calapooia Street and 

Comstock/Taylor Streets, and along Stearns Lane.  

 

Under the Land Use Element’s goal “to ensure that the development of Sutherlin is properly phased and 

orderly so that urban sprawl is avoided, livability is enhanced, and enough suitable land is available for 

future development,” the following policies are applicable to the requested amendment: 

 

Industrial Land Use Policies 

 

Policy 1 states to “provide appropriate public facilities in a timely manner to support industrial 

development in major manufacturing areas and other compatible locations.”   

 

Finding:  Public water and sewer, and fire protection are already in place adjacent to the properties and 

maintained by the City of Sutherlin. 

 

Policy 2 states to “encourage industrial uses to locate in the Industrial Park in order to reduce site 

development costs, maximize operating economies, and achieve a harmonious land use pattern.”  

 

Finding:  The applicant states that their proposal to re-zone the subject property to M-1 will be beneficial 

to the residents, businesses, and the City as a whole in the area and help to achieve a more harmonious 

land use pattern with the existing uses in the area. 

 

6. TRANSPORTATION ELEMENT & PEDESTRIAN & BICYCLE TRANSPORTATION 

 

The subject 19.59 acre property is located at the intersection of State Hwy 138 (W. Central Avenue) and 

Fort McKay Road.  State Hwy 138 is a minor arterial roadway under ODOT jurisdiction, while Ft. 

McKay Road is under County jurisdiction as a major collector roadway. 

 

John McDonald, Development Review Planner, ODOT Southwestern Region 3, stated in his 

correspondence dated 9-15-2015, access to both properties is not feasible from Highway 138.  A traffic 

impact study (TIS) will not be required by ODOT for this proposal.  He also stated that ODOT'S analysis 

indicated that the zone change from M-2 to M-1 will not have a significant effect on transportation 

facilities. 

 

According to ODOT’s letter, direct access from State Highway 138 will not be granted to the subject 

properties. In the future a grant process would have to be completed, which is rigorous as well as time 

consuming.  In the meantime, Mike Luttrell, Engineer Division Manager, Douglas County has agreed to 

continue to allow us to access from Fort McKay Road. 

 

Finding:  The City’s TSP and Interchange Area Management Plan (IAMP) for Exit 136 identify future 

plans for expansion and widening of West Central Ave (State Hwy 138) from the interchange to Fort 

McKay Road to five lanes, with an upgrade continuing westerly from Fort McKay Road to Stearns Lane 

to three lanes.  These planned improvements would also include the installation of identified pedestrian 

and bicycle path improvements. Future development of the subject properties will require access to come 

directly from Fort McKay, an existing County road, and not from the state transportation facility.    

 

 



 

MARGARET STOWE 13 MAY 10, 2016 

Finding:  The traffic impacts from the proposed plan amendment and zone change will be consistent with 

the traffic impacts and trip rates identified in Table 9 of the City’s IAMP .  The identified trip rate from 

heavy industrial to light industrial (which is three trips/acre for both heavy and light industrial) will 

remain the same with the zone change.  

 

ZONING MAP AMENDMENT STANDARDS 

 

Pursuant to Section 4.8.110.C of the Sutherlin Development Code, the proposed quasi-zoning map 

amendment is subject to the following criteria: 

 

1. Demonstration of compliance with all applicable comprehensive plan policies and map 

designations.  Where this criterion cannot be met, a comprehensive plan amendment shall be a 

prerequisite to approval; 

 

Finding:  The proposed zone map amendment is being reviewed in conjunction with a Comprehensive 

Plan amendment to change the subject 19.59 acres from heavy industrial to light industrial.  As noted in 

previous findings, the applicant’s proposal will be consistent with all the applicable comprehensive plan 

policies and implementing ordinances. 

 

2. Demonstration that the most intense uses and density that would be allowed, outright in the 

proposed zone, considering the sites characteristics, can be served through the orderly extension of 

urban facilities and services, including a demonstration of consistency with OAR 660-012-0060; 

and 

 

Finding:  The application explains how the requested proposal to light industrial, including the most 

intense uses and density that would be allowed under the M-1 zoning, can be served through the orderly 

extension of urban services.  Future development of the site will require the extension of public utilities 

(i.e. water and sanitary sewer) from State Hwy 138 and/or along Fort McKay Road.  Existing wetlands on 

the site also limit the density of any future development and also help to minimize the traffic impacts from 

any future development of the property.  With wetlands impacting development of portions of the subject 

property, ODOT and Douglas County has determined that a TIS is not required as part of this proposal.  

Future access to the site will be limited to the County road and not from state transportation facility.   

 

3. Evidence of change in the neighborhood or community, or a mistake or inconsistency between the 

comprehensive plan or zoning district map regarding the subject property which warrants the 

amendment.  

 

Finding:  The requested application is not the result of a mistake or inconsistency between the 

comprehensive plan or zoning district map.  This property was originally designated heavy industrial in 

the 1980s, when the Ford’s Pond area was also zoned heavy industrial uses when under the County’s 

jurisdiction.  Over the years, the area between the subject property and Ford’s Pond has been primarily 

developed as a single family residential area, with limited commercial and industrial uses in the area.   

 

Finding:  The applicant states the following, in part, to address the impact of the proposal. 

 

“Our joint plan is to increase the potential use of the property and to develop sites that 

match the surrounding area and businesses that are aesthetically pleasing.  If this property 

remains M-2 there is potential for rock crushers, wrecking yards, etc. that will fit the 

promotion of the scenic byway that runs adjacent to the property.  The community south of 

Fort McKay is the Urban Growth Boundary; M-1 zoning reduces the potential loss in 



 

MARGARET STOWE 14 MAY 10, 2016 

value of those properties or the desire to develop said properties.  It [the subject 12.50 

acres owned by Fenton/Corte] is being considered for Barnes Heating and Cooling, Inc. to 

relocate their business and showroom to this location.  It also would allow for potential 

medical offices/services to locate here for our demographic of a growing senior 

community. 

 

…Future heavy industrial businesses can locate south at Sutherlin’s industrial sites 

located within the city limits, with approximately 400+ acres zoned to allow for those 

businesses.  Jointly our 19.59 M-2 zoned acreage just doesn’t fit the schematic of the area 

anymore. There is a golf course, residential properties, housing developments, restaurants, 

doctor’s offices, and small office businesses located less than an eighth of a mile from the 

Fort McKay property.  We [the owners] feel the re-zoning would not only benefit us but the 

local residents and the community as a whole for the future growth of Sutherlin.”    

 

CONCLUSION 

 

City Staff recommends that the Commission forward a recommendation for approval to the Sutherlin City 

Council of the requested Comprehensive Plan Map Amendment from Heavy Industrial to Light Industrial 

and Zone Map Change from (M-2) Heavy Industrial to (M-1) Light Industrial on the subject 19.59 acre 

property.  In order to appropriately address the drainage concerns raised by the neighbors to the west 

(Sulffridges), drainage and surface water will have to be addressed as part of any future development 

and/or site plan review of the two subject properties as a means to minimize any adverse drainage impacts 

to the neighbors’ property. 

 

DECISION OPTIONS 

 
Based on the Applicant’s findings, the City Staff Report and the testimony and evidence provided during 

the public hearing, the Planning Commission can move to either: 

 

1. Close the public hearing and, after deliberating on the matter, pass a motion to recommend to the 

City Council approval of the requested Comprehensive Plan Map and Zoning Map Amendments on the 

subject 19.59 acre property; or  

 

2. Close the public hearing and, after deliberating on the matter, pass a motion to recommend to the 

City Council approval of the requested Comprehensive Plan Map and Zoning Map amendments with 

specified conditions; or 

 

3. Pass a motion to continue the public hearing to a specified date and time, or to close the public 

hearing and to leave the record open to a specified date and time for submittal of additional evidence and 

rebuttal; or 

 

4. Close the public hearing and, after deliberating on the matter, pass a motion to recommend denial 

of the requested Comprehensive Plan Map and Zoning Map amendments on the grounds that the proposal 

does not satisfy the applicable approval criteria. 

 

 

 



 

MARGARET STOWE 15 MAY 10, 2016 

STAFF EXHIBITS 

1. Notice of Public Hearing with affidavit of mailing 

2. DLCD Notice of Proposed Amendment with affidavit of mailing 

3. Copy of legal notice posted in the News Review   

4. Property Owners within 100 Feet 

5. Staff Report with Responses Attached and affidavit of mailing 

6. Comprehensive Plan & Zone Change applications and attachments 

7. Vicinity Map 

8. Assessor Map 

9. Sutherlin Comprehensive Plan Map 

10. City Zoning Map 

11. County Zoning Map 

12. Aerial Photograph 

13. Situs Map 

14. Wetlands Map 

 

 

 
H:\City_Assist\Casework\Sutherlin\2016 FILES\16-S002\16-S002_FentonLeatherwood_PAZC_PC staff report.docx 



























 

HUMMELT DEVELOPMENT 1 MAY 10, 2016 

             

               City of Sutherlin 
 

 
         May 10, 2016 

 

 

STAFF REPORT 

 

TO:  Sutherlin Planning Commission 

 

FROM: Lisa Hawley, Community Services Planner 

 
RE:   HUMMELT DEVELOPMENT COMPANY, request for a Comprehensive Plan 

Map Amendment from Light Industrial to Commercial Business District and Zone 
Map Change from (M-1) Light Industrial to (C-1) Downtown Commercial on a 
0.46 acre portion of a total 0.92 acre site located north of East Central Avenue at 
the intersection of N. Calapooia Street and W. First Avenue inside the City of 
Sutherlin.  The subject 0.46 acre portion is described as Tax Lots 5900 & 6000 in 
Section 17DC, T25S, R5W, W.M.; Property I.D. Nos. R56030 & R56023. 
PLANNING DEPARTMENT FILE NO. 16-S003. 

 
 

INTRODUCTION 
 

This staff report concerns a proposed Plan Amendment and Zone Change.  Current law requires Planning 

Commission and City Council approval of any amendment to the Sutherlin Plan and Zoning Maps.  The 

property owners requested the Plan Amendment and Zone Change from an Industrial plan designation to 

a Commercial Business District plan designation together with a change of current zoning from M-1 

(Light Industrial) to C-1 (Downtown Commercial) for a parcel containing 0.46 acres to allow for 

construction of a Rite Aid Pharmacy facility.  The subject property proposed for amendment is part of a 

greater ownership, part of which is already zoned C-1. The site is located at the intersection of Calapooia 

Avenue and First Street and is identified by the Douglas County Assessor as T25-R05-S17DC, Tax Lot(s) 

5900 and 6000, Property ID Nos. R56030 and R56023. (See Assessor’s map enlargement next page)  The 

property is owned by Atterbury Hardware and Lumber Company.  Hummelt Development Company, 

representative for the property owner, is Applicant in this matter. 

 

Applicant’s proposal requires amendments to the City’s official City of Sutherlin Plan and Zoning Maps 

as the subject property is currently planned and zoned for industrial use.  Applicant must demonstrate 

compliance with the Comprehensive Plan and to ensure consistency between the Plan and its 

implementing ordinances (i.e. zoning). 

 

Community Development 

126 E. Central Avenue 

Sutherlin, OR   97479 

(541) 459-2856 

Fax (541) 459-9363 
www.ci.sutherlin.or.us 



 

HUMMELT DEVELOPMENT 2 MAY 10, 2016 

The surrounding properties are comprised of mixed uses.  Lands to the north and west of the subject 

property are zoned industrially (M-1).   The properties to the east and south, including a portion of the 

subject property, are zoned C-1. 

 

During the public hearing on May 17, 2016, the Planning Commission will accept public testimony and 

make a decision on the application after the public hearing. As part of the hearing, the Planning 

Commission will review the applicant’s request for compliance with the Statewide Planning Goals and 

the general goals and policies of the Sutherlin Comprehensive Plan and the applicable criteria of the 

Sutherlin Development Code and adopt Findings of Fact. 

 

After the public hearing, the Planning Commission must make a written recommendation and forward it 

to the City Council in the form of a Findings of Fact and Decision document, which justifies its decision 

and recommendation. The Council will consider the Commission's recommendation, hold a public 

hearing, and make a decision to grant, amend or deny the request. 

 

PROCEDURAL FINDINGS OF FACT 

 

1. The Comprehensive Plan Map Amendment and Zone Map Change applications were filed with 

the City on March 31, 2016, and were deemed complete on April 6, 2016.   

 

2. DLCD Notice of Proposed Amendment was mailed to the Department of Land Conservation and 

Development on April 11, 2016, which was at least 35 days prior to the first evidentiary public 

hearing on May 17, 2016.   

 

3. Pursuant to Sections 4.2.150.D.4 and 4.2.140.C, notice of the public hearing was given by 

publication in the News Review on May 3, 2016, which was at least fourteen (14) days prior to the 

date of the public hearing.  

 

4. Notice of a Public Hearing on an application for the Comprehensive Plan Map Amendment and 

Zone Map Change before the Planning Commission was given in accordance with Section 

Sections 4.2.150.D.4 and 4.2.140.C.  Notice was sent to affected property owners of record within 

100 feet of the subject property, service providers, and governmental agencies on April 26, 2016.   

 

a. John McDonald, Development Review Planner, ODOT Southwestern Region, stated that 

ODOT has no comments on the proposed zone change.   

 

b. At the time of the mailing of this staff report, no other written comments or remonstrances 

have been received. 

 

5. Present Situation: The subject property is currently developed with a retail hardware store 

(Sutherlin True Value).  The planned development for the site is for a Rite Aid Pharmacy facility.  

 

6. Plan Designation: Light Industrial.  The applicant is requesting a plan map amendment to the 

Commercial Business District plan designation. 

 

7. Zone Designation: Light Industrial (M-1).  The applicant is requesting a zone map amendment to 

the Downtown Commercial (C-1) zoning designation. 

 

8. Public Water: The subject property has access to public water from the City of Sutherlin.   

 



 

HUMMELT DEVELOPMENT 3 MAY 10, 2016 

9. Sanitary Sewer: The subject property has access to sanitary sewer from the City of Sutherlin.  

 

10. Transportation System:  The subject 0.46 acre property is located on the west side of N. Calapooia 

Street at its intersection with E. First Avenue.  Both roads are currently designated as local streets 

under the City’s Transportation System Plan, and under City jurisdiction.   

 

11. Transportation Connectivity: The subject property is located the central business district of the 

City.  Connectivity is provided via E. Central Ave to the south, as well as N. Calapooia Street.  

 

12. Pedestrian & Bicycle Access: N. Calapooia Street is a designated bicycle and pedestrian way 

under the Transportation System Plan.   

 

13. Overlay:  The subject property is not located within the 100 year flood plain. 

 

Finding:  The procedural findings noted above are adequate to support the Planning Commission’s 

recommendation on the requested Comprehensive Plan Map Amendment and Zone Map Change. 

 

APPLICABLE CRITERIA & FINDINGS 

 

The City staff finds the applicant has provided a thorough set of findings in response to the approval 

criteria to demonstrate that the proposed request is consistent with the Statewide Planning Goals and the 

Sutherlin Comprehensive Plan and implementing ordinances. In order to avoid duplication and 

unnecessary time and expense, the staff has not provided a separate staff analysis and findings.  Generally 

staff concurs with the applicant’s findings, with the following supplemental information: 

 

1. City Public Works has been coordinating with the applicant and the developer of the subject 

property for the proposed Rite Aid Pharmacy facility, as part of a concurrent site plan review for 

the project.  This coordinated review includes coordination on the installation of any required 

water, sanitary sewer, storm water improvements, sidewalks along W. Central Avenue and N. 

Calapooia and any required construction and improvements to W. First Avenue for this 

development.   

 

CONCLUSION 

 

City Staff recommends that the Commission forward a recommendation for approval to the Sutherlin City 

Council of the requested Comprehensive Plan Map Amendment from Light Industrial to Commercial 

Business District and Zone Map Change from (M-1) Light Industrial to (C-1) Downtown Commercial on 

the subject 0.46 acre property.   

 

DECISION OPTIONS 

 
Based on the Applicant’s findings, the City Staff Report and the testimony and evidence provided during 

the public hearing, the Planning Commission can move to either: 

 

1. Close the public hearing and, after deliberating on the matter, pass a motion to recommend to the 

City Council approval of the requested Comprehensive Plan Map and Zoning Map Amendments on the 

subject 0.46 acre property; or  

 



 

HUMMELT DEVELOPMENT 4 MAY 10, 2016 

2. Close the public hearing and, after deliberating on the matter, pass a motion to recommend to the 

City Council approval of the requested Comprehensive Plan Map and Zoning Map amendments with 

specified conditions; or 

 

3. Pass a motion to continue the public hearing to a specified date and time, or to close the public 

hearing and to leave the record open to a specified date and time for submittal of additional evidence and 

rebuttal; or 

 

4. Close the public hearing and, after deliberating on the matter, pass a motion to recommend denial 

of the requested Comprehensive Plan Map and Zoning Map amendments on the grounds that the proposal 

does not satisfy the applicable approval criteria. 

 

 

STAFF EXHIBITS 

1. Notice of Public Hearing with affidavit of mailing 

2. DLCD Notice of Proposed Amendment with affidavit of mailing 

3. Copy of legal notice posted in the News Review   

4. Property Owners within 100 Feet 

5. Staff Report with Responses Attached and affidavit of mailing 

6. Comprehensive Plan & Zone Change applications and attachments 

7. Vicinity Map 

8. Assessor Maps 

9. Sutherlin Comprehensive Plan Map 

10. City Zoning Map 

11. Aerial Photograph 

12. Situs Map 

 

 

 
 

 

 
 

 

 
 

 

 
H:\City_Assist\Casework\Sutherlin\2016 FILES\16-S003\16-S003_Hummelt Development_PAZC_PC staff report.docx 

 

 
 



 

BEFORE THE PLANNING COMMISSION OF THE CITY OF SUTHERLIN 
 

 

IN THE MATTER of a request for a Plan 

Amendment and Zone Change for a parcel 

located at the intersection of Calapooia Street 

and First Street and identified by the Douglas  

County Assessor as T25S, R5W, S17DC, Tax 

Lots 5900 and 6000, Property ID Nos. R56030 

and R56023 

] FINDINGS OF FACT AND DECISION 

] Applicant: Hummelt Development Co. 

] Subject: Plan Amendment and Zone Change 

] File No.: 16-S003 

]  
] 

] 

 

I. OFFICIAL NOTICE 
 

The Planning Commission of the City of Sutherlin takes official notice of the following: 

 

1. The Sutherlin Comprehensive Plan, Sutherlin Municipal Code, and Sutherlin 

Development Code. 

 

2. The Statewide Planning Goals.  

 

3. The public notice records of the City of Sutherlin concerning this matter. 

 

4. The records of the City of Sutherlin concerning the deliberations on this matter before 

the Sutherlin Planning Commission, including the Staff Report and all evidence and 

testimony submitted for consideration. 

 

Finding:  The procedural and substantive findings noted herein are adequate to support 

the Planning Commission’s recommendation on the Comprehensive Plan Map 

amendment and Zoning Map amendment. 
 
 

II. SUBSTANTIVE FINDINGS OF FACT 
 

1. Hummelt Development Company, herein called Applicant, submitted applications for 

Plan and Zoning Map amendments on March 31, 2016, and was deemed completed on 

April 6, 2016.  Applicant has requested to change the plan and zone designations of the 

subject property to allow construction of a Rite Aid Pharmacy facility on the site and 

adjacent property owned by Atterbury Hardware and Lumber Company. The total parcel 

comprises 0.92 acres and the adjacent alley as platted in the Amended Plat of the 

Townsite of Sutherlin, Volume 3, Page 20, Plat Records of Douglas County Oregon. 

 

2. A Notice of Proposed Amendment was mailed to the Department of Land of 

Conservation and Development (DLCD) on April 11, 2016. 

 

3. On April 26, 2016, a Notice of Public Hearing before the Sutherlin Planning 

Commission was mailed to all record owners of property within 100 feet of the property 



Hummelt Development Company, Findings of Fact and Decision  May 17, 2016 

  

 

File Number 16-S002  Page 2 of 14 
 

proposed to be rezoned and to affected agencies and jurisdictions.  The notice was 

published in the News-Review on May 3, 2016. 
 

4. The Planning Department received one written correspondence from affected agencies 

concerning the proposed map amendment and zone change.   

 

a. ODOT stated that they had no comments on the proposed zone change.   

 

5. This matter came before the Sutherlin Planning Commission for consideration on May 

17, 2016.  The Planning Commission heard the staff report, listened to public testimony, 

and passed a motion to recommend that the City Council approve the proposed Plan and 

Zoning Map amendments as submitted. 
 

Finding:  The procedural findings noted above are adequate to support the Planning 

Commission’s recommendation on the requested Plan Map and Zoning Map amendments. 
 

 

III. EXECUTIVE SUMMARY 
 

This staff report concerns a proposed Plan Amendment and Zone Change.  Current law requires 

Planning Commission and City Council approval of any amendment to the Sutherlin Plan and 

Zoning Maps.  The property owners requested the Plan Amendment and Zone Change from an 

Industrial plan designation to a Commercial plan designation together with a change of current 

zoning from M-1 (Light Industrial) to C-1 (Downtown Commercial) for a parcel containing 

0.46 acres to allow for construction of a Rite Aid Pharmacy facility.  The subject property 

proposed for amendment is part of a greater ownership, part of which is already zoned C-1. The 

site is located at the intersection of Calapooia Avenue and First Street and is identified by the 

Douglas County Assessor as T25-R05-S17DC, Tax Lot(s) 5900 and 6000, Property ID Nos. 

R56030 and R56023. (See Assessor’s map enlargement next page)  The property is owned by 

Atterbury Hardware and Lumber Company.  Hummelt Development Company, representative 

for the property owner, is Applicant in this matter. 

 

Applicant’s proposal is evaluated in this report against the procedures and criteria for approving 

amendments to the Plan and Zoning Maps as provided in state statute and Sutherlin 

Development Code Sections 4.8 and 4.11.  Each applicable criterion is addressed separately, 

and proposed findings are provided to assist the Planning Commission in making a 

recommendation on this matter. 

 

The Planning Commission finds that the Plan Amendment and Zone Change proposed by 

Applicant satisfy the applicable approval criteria for these land use actions.  Based on the 

following Findings, the Planning Commission recommends approval of the requested Plan 

Amendment and Zoning Map amendments to the City Council. 
 

 

 

 



Hummelt Development Company, Findings of Fact and Decision  May 17, 2016 

  

 

File Number 16-S002  Page 3 of 14 
 

IV. GENERAL INFORMATION 
 

Applicant submitted applications for Plan and Zoning Map Amendments on March 29, 2016 

(Exhibit A). The applications were deemed complete on April l6, 2016.  Applicant requested the 

Plan Amendment and Zone Change from Industrial to a Commercial plan designation with a 

concurrent Zone Change from M-1 to C-1 for a parcel comprising 0.46 acres to allow 

construction of a Rite Aid Pharmacy facility.  The subject property is part of a greater 0.92 acre 

parcel located at the intersection of Central Avenue and First Street and is identified by the 

Douglas County Assessor map T25-R05-S17DC, Tax Lot(s) 5900 and 6000, Property ID Nos. 

R56030 and R56023. 
 

The subject property contains the existing Atterbury Hardware and Lumber Company business 

and is within the city limits boundary.  The proposed Plan Amendment and Zone Change will 

allow commercial use of the property as a permitted use under the requested C-1 zone. 

 

Applicant:     Subject Properties: 

Hummelt Development Co.   Property located at 1
st
 Ave and Calapooia Street  

29911 SW Boones Ferry Rd., Suite 3  Commonly identified as 239 West 1
st
 St. 

Wilsonville, Or  97070   Identified on the Douglas County Assessor’s 

(503) 351-2778    Map as Tax Lot(s) 5900 and 6000, Section 

17DC, T25S, R5W. 

       

Applicant’s proposal requires amendments to the City’s official City of Sutherlin Plan and 

Zoning Maps as the subject property is currently planned and zoned for industrial use.  

Applicant must demonstrate compliance with the Comprehensive Plan and to ensure 

consistency between the Plan and its implementing ordinances (i.e. zoning). 

 

The surrounding properties are comprised of mixed uses.  Lands to the north and west of the 

subject property are zoned industrially (M-1).   The properties to the east and south, including a 

portion of the subject property, are zoned C-1. (See Zoning Map next page) 
 

 

V. PROCEDURES 
 

Applicant has requested a Plan Amendment and Zone Change from Industrial to a Commercial 

plan designation with a concurrent Zone Change from M-1 to C-1 for north ½ of the ownership 

comprising 0.46 acres to allow use of the property for commercial purposes.  This change 

requires an amendment to the City's official Comprehensive Plan and Zoning Maps.  The 

proposed amendment to the city's Plan and Zoning Maps is necessary because it ties specific 

parcels and lots to the particular intent of the plan and zoning designations and subsequent 

development restrictions. 

 

The requested changes are specific to the identified property only.  Because a decision must be 

reached by applying existing criteria in the City's Plan and Zoning ordinances, approval of the 

Plan Amendment and Zone Change request requires quasi-judicial map amendments.  Before 



Hummelt Development Company, Findings of Fact and Decision  May 17, 2016 

  

 

File Number 16-S002  Page 4 of 14 
 

the Sutherlin Planning Commission can make a formal recommendation to the City Council 

concerning this request, a quasi-judicial public hearing must be held in which the Planning 

Commission reviews a staff report, takes written and oral testimony, considers the facts, applies 

the appropriate criteria (in this case, the Statewide Planning Goals, and the City's 

Comprehensive Plan and implementing ordinances), and adopts Findings of Fact which justify 

its decision and recommendation. 

 

The Findings of Fact must demonstrate compliance with Oregon's Statewide Planning Goals 

and address pertinent criteria from Sutherlin's Comprehensive Plan and implementing 

ordinances.  After relating the facts to the criteria, the Planning Commission must recommend 

approval, denial, or approval with conditions concerning the request to change the designation 

of the subject property on the Plan map from Industrial to Commercial and the designation on 

the Zoning map from M-1 to C-1. 

 

After the public hearing, the Planning Commission must make a written recommendation to the 

City Council in the form of a Findings of Fact and Decision document.  This document is 

formatted to facilitate that action per staff request.  The Council will consider the Commission's 

recommendation, hold a public hearing, and make a decision to grant, amend or deny the 

request.  

 

A Notice of Proposed Amendment was sent to the Department of Land of Conservation and 

Development (DLCD) as required.  DLCD has the right to comment on the proposal prior to 

city council approval at a final hearing.  In addition, the City’s decision can be appealed to the 

Land Use Board of Appeal (LUBA). 

 

. 

VI. CRITERIA AND FINDINGS 
 
 

DECISION CRITERIA AND SUBSTANTIVE FINDINGS OF FACT 
 

State statute requires that proposed amendments to Sutherlin's Comprehensive Plan and Zoning 

Maps be consistent with the Statewide Planning Goals.  Finally, Sections 4.8 and 4.11 of the 

Sutherlin Development Code (Plan Amendments and Zone Changes) provide specific local 

criteria for approving a Plan Amendment and Zone Change. 

 

The requested amendments to the Plan and Zoning Maps are measured here against these state 

and local criteria.  The results of this analysis are presented as proposed Findings of Fact below. 

 

CONSISTENCY WITH THE STATEWIDE PLANNING GOALS 

 

Goal 1: Citizen Involvement.  To provide for widespread citizen involvement in the 

planning process, and to allow citizens the opportunity to review and comment on 

proposed changes to comprehensive land use plans prior to any formal public 

hearing to consider the proposed changes. 



Hummelt Development Company, Findings of Fact and Decision  May 17, 2016 

  

 

File Number 16-S002  Page 5 of 14 
 

Finding: Statewide Planning Goal 1 requires cities and counties to create and use a 

citizen involvement process designed to include affected area residents in 

planning activities and decision-making.  Since acknowledgement of the City’s 

Comprehensive Plan, the Sutherlin Planning Commission has been responsible 

for ensuring continued citizen involvement in planning matters and land use 

decisions.  On April 26, 2016, City staff mailed copies of a Notice of Public 

Hearing to all owners of property within 100 feet of the subject property.  The 

same notice was published in the News-Review, a local newspaper of general 

circulation, on May 3, 2016.  Written evidence relied on by the land use 

decision-making bodies (i.e. the applications and supporting material) was 

available for public review at Sutherlin City Hall seven days prior to the first 

public hearing.  Sutherlin has fulfilled its citizen involvement process through 

early direct notification of nearby property owners, publication of a public 

hearing notice and contact information in the newspaper, and by facilitating 

informed public participation during the public hearing itself. 

 

Goal 2: Land Use Planning.  To establish a land use planning process and policy framework 

as a basis for all decisions and actions related to land use and to ensure a factual base 

for such decisions and actions. 

 

Finding: Sutherlin's acknowledged Comprehensive Plan and implementing ordinances 

provide a State-approved process for land use decision making, and a policy 

framework derived from a proper factual base.  The City's Comprehensive 

Plan and implementing ordinances provide the local criteria by which 

Applicant’s request was judged.  The subject property is within the Sutherlin 

City Limits Boundary, no exception to statewide planning goals is necessary. 

 

Goal 3: Agricultural Lands.  To preserve and maintain agricultural lands. 

Goal 4: Forest Lands.  To conserve forest lands by maintaining the forest land base and to 

protect the state's forest economy by making possible economically efficient forest 

practices that assure the continuous growing and harvesting of forest tree species as 

the leading use on forest land.... 

 

Finding: The subject property proposed for amendment is currently designated 

Industrial by the City of Sutherlin Comprehensive Plan and is zoned M-1.  The 

subject property is not agricultural or forest land as defined by Statewide Goals 

3 and 4.  The property is situated within the urban area and has been 

designated for urban use by the Sutherlin Comprehensive Plan.  The proposed 

amendment does not involve the conversion of designated farm or forest land to 

urban use.  Statewide Goals Nos. 3 and 4 are not applicable to this requested 

amendment. 

 

Goal 5: Open Spaces, Scenic and Historic Areas, and Natural Resources.  To protect 

natural resources and conserve scenic and historic areas and open spaces. 

 



Hummelt Development Company, Findings of Fact and Decision  May 17, 2016 

  

 

File Number 16-S002  Page 6 of 14 
 

Finding: Statewide Planning Goal 5 requires local governments to adopt programs that 

will protect natural resources and conserve scenic, historic, and open space 

resources for present and future generations.  Goal 5 requires local 

governments to inventory natural resources such as wetlands, riparian 

corridors, and wildlife habitat.  In addition, Goal 5 encourages local 

governments to maintain current inventories of open spaces, scenic views and 

sites, and historic resources.  Significant sites must be identified and protected 

according to Goal 5 rules contained in the Oregon Administrative Rules, 

Chapter 660, Division 23. 

 Goal 5 resources within Douglas County and the City of Sutherlin have 

previously been inventoried and evaluated, and the City has completed a Local 

Wetlands Inventory. (Copy of Wetlands Map following this page) The property 

contains no wetlands, riparian corridor or significant wildlife habitat.  No 

known historic or cultural resources exist on the site, and the property contains 

no open spaces or scenic areas as identified by the City of Sutherlin.  The 

elevation of the property puts it well outside the flood plain of any area streams. 

 

Goal 6: Air, Water, and Land Resource Quality.  To maintain and improve the quality of 

air, water, and land resources of the State. 

 

Finding: Statewide Planning Goal 6 requires that waste and process discharges from 

future development combined with that of existing development do not violate 

State or Federal environmental quality regulations.  Rezoning the subject parcel 

to C-1 is not expected to result in any additional development with the typical 

associated waste stream characteristics. The proposed C-1 zoning is an 

acknowledgement of the existing development pattern on the subject property 

and surrounding area.  Any further development of the property will undergo 

the required City of Sutherlin site development review process which will help 

assure that future waste streams that occur will be no more adverse to the 

environment and the City’s treatment capacity than would be the case under the 

current zoning.   

 

 The City has regulations in place to control the generation and disposal of 

commercial wastes, and the site is currently served by City water and sewer 

services. Therefore, the proposed rezoning is not expected to have any 

deleterious effects on the quality of the air, water, or land resources of the State.  

Existing state, federal, and local land use and environmental standards will be 

sufficient to ensure that subsequent land use activities at the subject site will be 

conducted in a manner that is consistent with, and will achieve the purpose of 

Goal 6. 

 

Goal 7: Areas Subject to Natural Disasters and Hazards.  To protect life and property 

from natural disasters and hazards. 

 



Hummelt Development Company, Findings of Fact and Decision  May 17, 2016 

  

 

File Number 16-S002  Page 7 of 14 
 

Finding: The site has flat topography and is not within a special overlay zone or in an 

area that is designated as susceptible to flooding or other natural hazards.  Any 

new development on the site will comply with building codes and fire safety 

requirements.  These existing regulations serve to ensure the protection of life 

and property rendering the request consistent with Goal 7. 

 

Goal 8: Recreational Needs.  To satisfy the recreational needs of the citizens of the state 

and visitors and, where appropriate, to provide for the citing of necessary 

recreational facilities including destination resorts. 

 

Finding: The subject property has not been designated by the City of Sutherlin as land 

needed to meet the recreational needs of the citizens of, or visitors to, the state 

of Oregon.  The property is currently zoned for industrial use and has no 

special geographic or natural advantages for recreational use.  The requested 

amendment does not conflict with Goal 8. 

 

Goal 9: Economy of the State.  To provide adequate opportunities throughout the State for a 

variety of economic activities vital to the health, welfare, and prosperity of Oregon's 

citizens. 

 

Finding: The subject property is currently inside the city limits and planned and zoned 

for industrial development.  The Sutherlin Comprehensive Plan contains 

specific policies for protecting and ensuring future economic development in the 

area is enhanced as discussed below in more detail under the local planning 

policies.  The application for Plan Amendment and Zone Change affects 0.46 

acres of land and conversion of this ownership will have some positive impact 

on the current inventory of land needed for economic development and is 

therefore consistent with Goal 9. 

 

Goal 10: Housing.  To provide for the housing needs of citizens of the State. 

 

Finding: The 0.46 acres is currently designated Industrial by the Sutherlin 

Comprehensive Plan and is zoned M-1 for industrial uses.  The property is 

developed with an existing commercial/industrial use.  The rezoning proposed 

by Applicant will not result in a reduction or increase in residential housing in 

the city.  The application for Plan Amendment and Zone Change will have no 

impact on the current inventory of land needed for residential development and 

is consistent with Goal 10. 

 

Goal 11: Public Facilities and Services.  To plan and develop a timely, orderly, and efficient 

arrangement of public facilities and services to serve as a framework for urban and 

rural development. 

 

Finding: The subject property is within Sutherlin City Limits.  The lands currently are 

served by City water and sewer services.  There are 8” sewer and water lines 



Hummelt Development Company, Findings of Fact and Decision  May 17, 2016 

  

 

File Number 16-S002  Page 8 of 14 
 

located in both the alley south of the property and Calapooia Street which 

provide water and sewer services to the area.  (See City Utility Map next page) 

The existing commercial/industrial uses have been located on the site for many 

years.  Applicant proposes construction of a Rite Aid Pharmacy facility on the 

total 0.92 acre ownership referenced in the introduction as a result of this 

proposal.  (See Exhibit 1 for development plan) The City will review the specific 

development plans for the site to determine any additional infrastructure 

requirements.  The City has both the capacity and ability to provide the 

required public facilities, as available, with sufficient infrastructure investment 

on the part of the owners.  It can be expected that the property will continue to 

be served by city water and sewer, as well as other necessary public utilities.  

The proposed amendment affecting the 0.46 acre subject property is not in 

conflict with Goal 11. 

 

Goal 12: Transportation.  To provide and encourage a safe, convenient, and economic 

transportation system. 

 

Findings: The statewide transportation goal is generally intended to be applied on a city-

wide basis. Specific transportation-related policies and development standards 

are included within the Sutherlin Comprehensive Plan and land use ordinances to 

assure that the intent of the statewide transportation goal is implemented through 

the application of both state and local policies and standards at the time of 

development.  The intent of Goal 12 is also implemented by the State 

Transportation Planning Rule (OAR 660, Division 12).  OAR 660-12-060(1) 

requires that "amendments to functional plans, acknowledged comprehensive 

plans, and land use regulations which significantly affect a transportation facility 

shall assure that allowed land uses are consistent with the identified function, 

capacity, and level of service of the facility”. 

 

In order to ensure that a proposed land use change complies with the 

requirements of the Transportation Planning Rule, the City of Sutherlin has 

adopted the following standards for Plan Amendment applications: 

 

“(1) The applicant shall certify the proposed land use designations, 

densities or design standards are consistent with the function, capacity and 

performance standards for roads identified in the County Transportation System 

Plan. 

 

(a) The applicant shall cite the identified Comprehensive Plan function, 

capacity and performance standard of the road used for direct access and 

provide findings that the proposed amendment will be consistent with the 

County Transportation System Plan.” 

 



Hummelt Development Company, Findings of Fact and Decision  May 17, 2016 

  

 

File Number 16-S002  Page 9 of 14 
 

(b) The jurisdiction providing direct access (County or ODOT) may 

required the applicant to submit a Traffic Impact Study certified by a Traffic 

Engineer that supports the findings used to address §6.500.2.a(1)(a). 

 

The functional classifications of transportation facilities within the City of 

Sutherlin Transportation System Plan (TSP) are identified on Page 4-11 of that 

document.  There are three streets identified under the TSP that are part of this 

proposal.  Central Avenue is designated an “Arterial” west of State Street and 

along the frontage of the total property.  Both Calapooia Street and 1
st
 Street are 

designated “Local” streets.   

 

As previously noted, the subject 0.46 acre site is situated on the west side of 

Calapooia Street with a direct access onto the street.  Central Avenue is improved 

to a two lane urban street with a signalized left turn lane on both east and west 

bound travel lanes at its intersection with Calapooia Street.  Calapooia Street is 

improved to a two lane paved street with curbs, gutters and sidewalks on the 

southerly portion of the site.  1
st
 Street is partially improved with no curbs, 

gutters or sidewalks.  The property will continue to have direct access to the 

identified streets upon completion of the proposed development of the site.  At the 

present time, the public roads in the area are and have been adequate to 

accommodate existing traffic volumes generated by the use on the property. 

 

The Oregon Department of Transportation (ODOT) presently has jurisdiction of 

access on Central Avenue and the City controls access along Calapooia Street and 

1
st
 Street.  Applicant has fully coordinated the proposed development with both 

jurisdictions. Both ODOT and the City of have reviewed Applicant’s 

development proposal and determined that the planned development is consistent 

with Goal 12 and will not have any deleterious effect on the area transportation 

facilities. 

 

The proposed amendment is predicated upon existing commercial/industrial 

development on the property which has been in place for many years.  The 

proposed development is consistent with the historical use of the property and 

area road capacities.  Consequently, the proposed amendment will not create an 

unacceptable increase in traffic on the area road system per ODOT and the City 

of Sutherlin.  Therefore, there will be no potential for unacceptable traffic 

generation on the area road system as a result of Applicant’s request. 

 

The Planning Commission finds that the map amendments will not cause a 

change in the existing level of service of the area road system.  Further, existing 

development standards in place in the City of Sutherlin Development Code will 

help to insure any future commercial development approval of the property 

and its associated impacts will be in compliance with the TSP and IAMP.  The 

requested amendment meets the requirements of Goal 12 

 



Hummelt Development Company, Findings of Fact and Decision  May 17, 2016 

  

 

File Number 16-S002  Page 10 of 14 
 

Goal 13: Energy Conservation.  To conserve energy. 

 

Finding: Statewide Planning Goal 13 requires that land uses shall be managed and 

controlled so as to maximize the conservation of all forms of energy, based upon 

sound economic principles.  The subject property contains a pre-existing 

commercial/industrial use.  Any future commercial development on the property 

will be completed under City standards for the specific use.  The proposed map 

amendment includes changing the zoning on the property from M-1 to C-1 in 

conformance with the requested Commercial plan designation under the City of 

Sutherlin Comprehensive Plan.  The 0.46 acre property will also be subject to 

development standards and building codes that provide for a minimum level of 

energy efficiency.  The proposal is consistent with principles of efficient land use 

and energy efficiency and Goal 13. 

 

Goal 14: Urbanization.  To provide for an orderly and efficient transition from rural to urban 

land use. 

 

Finding: The subject property is located within the Sutherlin City Limits and was 

previously designated by the City of Sutherlin as urban industrial land.  The 

state has previously acknowledged the lands within Sutherlin as being in 

compliance with Goal 14. 

 

 

COMPLIANCE WITH CITY OF SUTHERLIN DEVELOPMENT CODE CRITERIA 

 

Sections 2.3.100 through 2.5.135 of the Sutherlin Development Code (Commercial Districts) 

provide the development criteria for commercial uses and structures within the City of 

Sutherlin.  The proposed commercial development of the subject property will comply with all 

development standards set out in the requested C-1 zone.  The purpose of the proposed 

amendment is to allow development of the site with uses not currently allowed under the 

present M-1 zoning.  The proposed commercial development will comply with all of the 

development standards of the requested C-1 zone. 

 

Finding: The Commission finds that the proposed structural development on the subject 

property will be in substantial compliance with the Development Code for the 

City of Sutherlin.  The proposed amendment will change the existing 

development and use on the subject property.  The Plan Amendment and Zone 

Change is in satisfactory compliance with the City of Sutherlin Development 

Code. 

 

Section 4.11.110 C of the Sutherlin Development Code (Zone Changes and Annexations) 

provides the following criteria for approving a Zone Change: 

 

“The planning commission’s recommendation and the city council’s decision shall be 

based on the following approval criteria”: 



Hummelt Development Company, Findings of Fact and Decision  May 17, 2016 

  

 

File Number 16-S002  Page 11 of 14 
 

 

1. The proposed amendment is consistent with applicable statewide 

planning goals as adopted by the Land Conservation and 

Development Commission; and  

2. The proposed amendment is consistent with the remainder of the 

comprehensive plan, including inventory documents and facility 

plans incorporated therein. 

 

City Zone Change Criteria #1: The proposed amendment is consistent with applicable 

statewide planning goals as adopted by the Land 

Conservation and Development Commission 

 

Finding: Findings for the statewide planning goals adopted by Department of Land and 

Conservation and Development (DLCD) are addressed on an individual basis in 

previous section of this document. Each of the applicable goals contains findings 

of compliance, and no exceptions to those goals are proposed.  The Plan 

Amendment and Zone Change satisfy the statewide planning goals. 

 

City Zone Change Criteria #2:  The proposed amendment is consistent with the remainder of 

         the comprehensive plan, including inventory documents and              

                    facility plans incorporated therein. 

 

Population and Economy Element Conformance 

Policy A4:  The City shall supply an adequate amount of land with suitable soils and 

drainage qualities to accommodate projected commercial needs. 

 

The proposed Zone Change will convert 0.46 acres from M-1 zoning to C-1 zoning 

in accordance with the requested commercial plan designation which essentially 

imposes the anticipated commercial zoning.  The Sutherlin Buildable Lands 

Inventory (BLI) dated June 2005 contains an analysis of needed commercial and 

industrial lands for the city. The BLI states that, …the City has a surplus of 

industrial lands…and a deficit of commercial lands in all designations (See insert 

Pgs. 5-4 and 5-5 of BLI following this page).  The conversion of this site to a 

commercial designation is consistent with the need for commercial lands in the 

Sutherlin area as set out in the BLI.  In addition, the introduction of a new 

commercial enterprise will increase employment opportunities for Sutherlin and the 

surrounding area.  Applicant’s proposal therefore conforms to this policy and the 

Population and Economy Element of the Comprehensive Plan. 

  

Public Facilities Plan Conformance 

Policy A1:  The City shall ensure that appropriate support systems are installed 

prior to or concurrent with the development of a particular area.  Costs of 

constructing water and sewer ties to new developments shall be borne by the 

developer.  

 



Hummelt Development Company, Findings of Fact and Decision  May 17, 2016 

  

 

File Number 16-S002  Page 12 of 14 
 

Policy A14:  Ensure that as new development occurs, public facilities and services to 

support the development are available or will be available within a reasonable time.  

 

Policy A20:  New development, including but not limited to subdivisions, residential 

or commercial, or industrial construction, should be responsible for constructing, 

paying for, or depositing funds for an improved street with curbs, gutters, sidewalks, 

as well as sewer, water, storm drainage facilities, fire hydrants, and street lights, in 

addition to all utilities.   

 

Finding: The purpose of the Zone Change is to facilitate new commercial use of the 

subject property according to the standards prescribed in the C-1 zone.  The 

subject property is within the City of Sutherlin.  There are existing water and 

sewer lines located near the subject properties along the alley south of the 

subject property and Calapooia Street as set out in the utility exhibit referenced 

under Goal 11.  The property owners will be responsible for installing any 

future infrastructure dictated by future development on the property as 

appropriate in accordance with the Public Facilities Plan and the Sutherlin 

Development Code. 

 

The Plan Amendment and Zone Change may create additional need for public 

facilities.  Any improvements to those public facilities necessary as a result of 

future commercial development at the site will require the owners to participate 

in funding those improvements.  The extent to which public facilities and 

services are required to serve the property will be determined at the time a 

specific development proposal is reviewed.  The requested Plan Amendment 

and Zone Change are consistent with the Public Facilities Plan. 

 

Land Use Element Conformance 
Land Use Policy A1:  Conversion of urbanizable land to urban uses shall be based 

on consideration of: 

A. Orderly, economic provision for public facilities and services; 

B. Availability of sufficient land of various use designations to ensure choices in 

the marketplace; 

C. Conformance with statewide planning goals; and 

D. Encouragement of development within urban areas before conversion of non-

urban areas. 

Land Use Policy A2:  Work toward development of “open” lands identified as 

suitable for development within the existing city limits before annexing additional 

lands. 

 

Finding: The subject property is inside Sutherlin’s city limits. The property is 

surrounded on all sides by developed, or partially developed, commercial and 

industrial lands.  As discussed previously under Consistency with the Statewide 

Planning Goals, public facilities and services are readily available to the site 

except as noted.  Also, the property is located in immediate proximity to the 



Hummelt Development Company, Findings of Fact and Decision  May 17, 2016 

  

 

File Number 16-S002  Page 13 of 14 
 

downtown commercial district of the City.  The proposed C-1 zoning will 

support the proposed commercial uses on the site.   

 

 The surrounding properties, as mentioned previously, are currently designated 

commercial and industrial land in the Comprehensive Plan.  Applicant 

proposes to change the existing industrial designation to Commercial on 0.46 

acres to allow full commercial development of the total 0.92 acre property. 

Applicant has also submitted a Zone Change request to allow implementation 

of the proposed commercial plan designation via the C-1 zone.  The Zoning 

Map amendment to C-1 will be consistent with the requested commercial plan 

designation. 

 

Finding:  The proposed Plan Amendment and Zone Change will conform to the Sutherlin 

Comprehensive Plan, including the land use map and written policies. 

 

 

VII. ACTION ALTERNATIVES 
 

1. Close the public hearing and, after deliberating on the matter, pass a motion to 

recommend to the City Council approval of the requested Plan and Zoning Map 

amendments. 

 

2. Close the public hearing and, after deliberating on the matter, pass a motion to 

recommend to the City Council approval of the requested Plan and Zoning Map 

amendments with specified conditions. 

 

3. Pass a motion to continue the public hearing to a specified date and time, or to 

close the public hearing and to leave the record open to a specified date and time for 

submittal of additional evidence and rebuttal. 

 

4. Close the public hearing and, after deliberating on the matter, pass a motion to 

recommend denial of the requested Plan and Zoning Map amendments on the 

grounds that the proposal does not satisfy the applicable approval criteria. 

 

The Planning Commission determined to recommend approval of Applicant’s request as 

submitted.  The Planning Commission made a motion to authorize the Chairman of the Planning 

Commission to review and sign the Findings of Fact and Decision document on its behalf.  

 
 

VIII. PLANNING COMMISSION RECOMMENDATION 
 

The Planning Commission passed a motion to recommend that the City Council approve the 

requested Plan and Zoning Map amendments as submitted.   

 



Hummelt Development Company, Findings of Fact and Decision  May 17, 2016 

  

 

File Number 16-S002  Page 14 of 14 
 

VII. EXHIBITS 
 

A. Applications for Plan and Zoning Map amendments filed with the City on March 31, 2016, 

with map attachments. 

B. Planning Commission Public Hearing notice 

C. Correspondence 

D. Existing Plan Map 

E. Proposed Zone Map 

F. Staff Report 

 

 

This recommendation for approval is issued in accordance with the Sutherlin Development 

Code (ORD 976). 

 

 

DATED THIS _____ DAY OF __________________, 2016. 

 

 

      _______________________________________ 

      John Lusby 

      Sutherlin Planning Commission Chair 

 

ATTEST: 

 

___________________________________ 

XXXXX 

Deputy, CMC, Deputy City Recorder  
 

 















Staff Report for Planning Commission – Activity updates       Page 1 
 

Dddddddddd 
 
 
 

 
 
Date: May 11, 2016 
To:   Sutherlin Planning Commission 
From: CDD, Vicki Luther 
Re: Monthly Activity Report  
 
This report is provided in an effort to keep you apprised of recent land use and other relevant 
activities.    
 
TRANSPORTATION 
Slurry Seal bid opening is scheduled for May 19th.  
 
UTILITIES 
Wastewater Treatment Plant Improvements – Dyer provided Council with a power point 
presentation at their September 28th meeting.  Financing has been secured.  30% Pre-design 
has been submitted to DEQ by Dyer Partnership. Review completed and comments due back in 
February. RFQ has been advertised for Value Engineering.  The aluminum outbuildings have 
been taken down. 
 
N. Comstock Water Line – This project will replace the waterline along N. Comstock with a 
new 12” line prior to the street reconstruction.  Bid was awarded to Knife River and project 
should be completed this summer.   
 
PARKS 
 
OPRD Grant – grant submitted to restore the entire play area at Central Park.  New ground 
cover, new play equipment, and a splash pad.  Grant application was reviewed and City staff 
will be making a presentation in Salem the first week in June. 
 
OPRD Grant – grant submitted this week to fund a master plan for Fords Pond Recreation 
Area.   
 
LAND USE ACTIVITY 
Building Worksheets approved –  

 756 Magnolia - Deck 

 535 S. State Street - Addition 

 716 Sandpiper – Single Family Dwelling 

 1978 Kapela Court – Single Family Dwelling 

 1212 S. Comstock – Deicer container (ODOT) 

 631 W. First – Fence 

 1358 W. Central – Temporary Food Vendor (Me Gusto Es) 

 113 E. Central – Interior Remodel 

 716 Sandpiper – Single Family Dwelling 

 416 Glen Ave – Addition 

 160 Sunset – Demolition 

 

126 E. Central Avenue 

Sutherlin, OR  97479 

541-459-2856 

Fax: 541-459-9363 

www.ci.sutherlin.or.us 

                   City of Sutherlin 
 
 
 
 
Dd 
 
 
D 
 
 
D 
jfjdkdl 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

http://www.ci.sutherlin.or.us/


Staff Report for Planning Commission – Activity updates       Page 2 
 

 895 Valley Vista – Single Family Dwelling 

 327 S. Calapooia  Additional Shop Building 
 
 

Commercial changes 

 Kim’s Court – Removing 15 old mobile homes and replacing with new Park Models,  These 
homes are to be 14’ wide and either 28’ or 32’ long.  Each unit to have a minimum ten-foot 
wide landscaped side yard, a front sidewalk with one parallel parking space.  They are 
placing the first units now with more to come in 2016 (total of 15).  New sidewalks will be 
installed along N. State Street between First and Second Avenue – after all units have been 
placed. 

 
Active Land Use Application status  
SUB 13-01:  Brooks Village (Avery) subdivision: 151 Pear Lane    Extension awarded 
SUB 13-02: Fairway Ridge (Galpin) subdivision: Scardi Blvd.  Plan is to begin infrastructure 
this spring/summer.  (some clearing has occurred; conditions still in process) 
BLA 16-S004 – City of Sutherlin - Everett Street (approved subject to conditions) 
PAR 16-S001 – Avery - E. Fourth Avenue  (approved subject to conditions) 
 
Right of Way Applications 
Rick Swanson – W. First 
Charter – 183 E. First 
Avista – 160 Sunset 
Avista – 100 block of W. Second 
Nall Communications (Charter) – 1078 S. Calapooia 
   
 



FOR YOUR INFORMATION 
 

LAND USE APPLICATIONS 

 

 

16-S001 –  GORDON AVERY – LAND PARTITION 

16-S004 – CITY OF SUTHERLIN - BLA 

 













































































FOR YOUR INFORMATION 
 

LAND USE ACTIVITY 

WORKSHEETS 

 

 

2016-03  995 FOREST HEIGHTS 

2016-04 1005 FOREST HEIGHTS   

2016-06 105 W CENTRAL 

2016-09 756 MAGNOLIA ST 

2016-10 535 S STATE ST 

2016-11 716 SANDPIPER CT 

2016-12 1978 KAPELA CT 

2016-13 1212 S COMSTOCK 

2016-14 631 W FIRST AVE 

2016-15 1358 W CENTRAL 

2016-16 113 E CENTRAL AVE 

2016-17 716 SANDPIPER CT 

2016-18 416 GLEN AVE 

2016-19 160 SUNSET 

2016-20 895 VALLEY VISTA  

2016-21 327 S CALAPOOIA 


































	05-17-2016 Agenda.pdf
	02-16-16 PC MINS.pdf
	16-S002_FentonLeatherwood_PAZC_PC staff report.pdf
	16-S002_FentonLeatherwood_PAZC_PC letters of remonstrance.pdf
	16-S002_FentonLeatherwood_PAZC_PC maps.pdf
	16-S003_Hummelt Development_PAZC_PC staff report.pdf
	16-S003_Hummelt Development_PAZC_PC staff report findings.pdf
	16-S003_Hummelt Development_PAZC_PC letter of remonstrance.pdf
	16-S003_Hummelt Development_PAZC_PC SR maps.pdf
	05.11.16 - Report to commission - activity.pdf
	FOR YOUR INFORMATION LAND USE.pdf
	16-S001 Avery Land Partition Decision.pdf
	16-S001 Avery Land Partition Maps.pdf
	16-S004 City of Sutherlin BLA Decision.pdf
	FOR YOUR INFORMATION WORKSHEETS.pdf
	2016-03 995 Forest Heights.pdf
	2016-04 1005 Forest Heights.pdf
	2016-06 105 W Central - Sign.pdf
	2016-09 756 Magnolia St.pdf
	2016-10 535 S State St.pdf
	2016-11 716 Sandpiper Ct.pdf
	2016-12 1978 Kapela Ct.pdf
	2016-13 1212 S. Comstock.pdf
	2016-14 631 W First Ave.pdf
	2016-15 1358 W Central.pdf
	2016-16 113 E Central Ave.pdf
	2016-17 716 Sandpiper Ct.pdf
	2016-18 416 Glen Ave.pdf
	2016-19 160 Sunset - Demo.pdf
	2016-20 895 Valley Vista.pdf
	2016-21 327 S. Calapooia.pdf



